MINUTES
ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION MEETING
HELD ON THE 13™ DAY OF AUGUST 2015 AT 9:00 A.MW.
MEETING ROOM - DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES BUILDING
4230 ELKHART ROAD, GOSHEN, INDIANA

1. The regular meeting of the Elkhart County Plam@ission was called to order by the
Chairperson, Steve Warner, with the following merslpgesent: Tony Campanello, Jeff Burbrink,
Lori Snyder, Steve Warner, Roger Miller, Steve BExdisaTom Stump, Frank Lucchese, and Blake
Doriot. Staff members present were: Chris GodkewBlan Director; Jason Auvil, Planning
Manager; Mark Kanney, Planner; Liz Gunden, PlanKathy Wilson, Administrative Manager;
and James W. Kolbus, Attorney for the Board.

2. A motion was made and secondktller/Burbrink) that the minutes of the regular meeting
of the Elkhart County Plan Commission held on tfiel@y of July 2015 be approved as submitted
and the motion was carried unanimously.

3. A motion was made and second@tiwards/Miller) that the Elkhart County Zoning
Ordinance and Elkhart County Subdivision Contralli@ance be accepted as evidence for today’s
hearings. With a unanimous vote, the motion wasech

4. The application for multiple corrective amendiseto the text of the Elkhart County
Subdivision Control Ordinance to change bondingiiregnents for subdivision improvements from
prior to secondary approval to prior to recordingtlee plat; listed as follows: Section 3.17
PROVISIONS FOR COMPLETION OF IMPROVEMENTS, amendirgubsection A -
COMPLETION OF IMPROVEMENTS; Section 3.18 ADMINISTRAON AND
ENFORCEMENT OF PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES, amending $adbon D - Release;
Section 3.23 RECORDING OF SECONDARY PLAT by amegdiubsection A - SIGNATURES
REQUIRED; by adding Subsection B - Acceptance Requand C - Legal Effect; and amending
APPENDIX B SECONDARY PLAT CHECKLIST - Subsection Wor the Elkhart County
Advisory Plan Commissiorfor property located in the unincorporated a@eslkhart County, the
Town of Bristol, the Town of Wakarusa, the TownMiflersburg, and the Town of Middlebury,
was presented at this time.

Mr. Auvil restated the content of the memo addrdsto the members of the Plan
Commission dated July 24, 2015, which was includeébde Commissioners’ packets.

There were no remonstrators present.

A motion was made and second@&dirbrink/Stump}hat the public hearing be closed and
the motion was carried with a unanimous vote.

Mr. Kolbus reminded the Board that the amendmemischot prohibit a developer from
choosing to provide a bond before Secondary approva

The Board examined said request and after duedssagon and deliberation:
Motion: Action: Approve, Moved by Blake Doriot, Seconded by Steven Edwards, that the
Advisory Plan Commission recommend to the Boar@aiinty Commissioners that this request for
multiple corrective amendments to the text of thé&t County Subdivision Control Ordinance be
approved.



PAGE 2 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 8-13-15

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vomithmary: Yes = 9).
Yes. Blake Doriot, Frank Lucchese, Jeff Burbrink, Lomy8er, Roger Miller, Steve Warner,
Steven Edwards, Tom Stump, Tony Campanello.

5. The application for a zone map change from B-B-t, forCandi L. Chupp (seller) and
Thomas E. Miller (buyer) on property located on the southeast corner ofi€Rnd Suburban
Drive, west side of Christopher Drive, 800 ft. $oaf SR 120, common address of 54628 CR 17 in
Washington Township, was presented at this time.

Ms. Gunden presented the Staff Report/Staff ysis| which is attached for review @ase
#54628CR 17-150619-1

Brief discussion between Mr. Stump and Ms. Gurrdsnlted in a conclusion that while the
subdivision surrounding the subject lot does netlaty sewer, part of the subdivision might have
city water. Mary Ann Lorentz, an audience membebsehcomments had not yet been solicited,
then interjected that the entire subdivision dagshave city water or sewer.

* It is noted that the petitioner arrived late. Se@udience remarks were therefore taken before the
petitioner’s.

Mary Ann Lorentz, 21853 Christopher Dr., Elkhartjo asked that the Board follow the
staff's denial recommendation, submitted a thregepalocument containing 51 signatures
“requesting that the zoning be denigdfached to file as Remonstrator Exhibit #1jThe signatures, she said,
are of Suburban Acres property owners and resideintswere asked whether they were “for or
against.” Those who were home at the time of therttedoor solicitation signed against the
petition, she concluded.

Arthur Green, 21886 Suburban Dr., Elkhart, begaodmparing the cost of water now with
its much lower cost 40 years ago, when he movédetsubdivision and water use was unmetered.
The comparison reveals that some of what is dometigor the best, he said, and noted that the
intersection of SR 120 and CR 17 has since bechebusiest intersection in Elkhart County. He
said that another entrance and exit for traffioas needed on “that road,” said that the proposed
building is 50 ft. from Suburban Dr., and did nabk why anybody would want to put a business
there, where it would have “poor access” becaudeatiic. Mr. Green and the Board then agreed
on the density of late-afternoon CR 17 traffic.

Mr. Green then observed that the lot in questiaa tiefinite area and asked where the
petitioner will get more area as his business as#s. He also said that more business in an area
already saturated by business will add insult jryrand cause more accidents.

Larry Tinsley, 21954 Christopher Dr., Elkhart, winees next to the subject property, said
that the area is business oriented and had nogonobith the clean-up of the subject property, an
eyesore and a mess that he is sick of lookingret,its use for a business. He noted that the
property’s proximity to CR 17 means that any neaffit generated would be “in and out,”
acknowledging that traffic is bad all along CR 1id asserting that “this is a business town.”

He said also that he had never seen “that péetiiod that no one ever knocked on his door.

Mr. Miller mentioned that the subject property has direct CR 17 access. Mr. Tinsley
agreed but noted the short distance between thepyts driveway and CR 17. He asserted also
that the property had plenty of room for business and offered to sell his own property to the



PAGE 3 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 8-13-15

petitioner.

In response to Mr. Tinsley, Ms. Lorentz came fanvagain and said that traffic to the
subject site would indeed enter and exit the suidiv, as the proposed driveway, she believed,
was on Christopher Dr. She said also that the jgexpdriveway is a dirt driveway.

Tom Miller, the petitioner, 53855 SR 13, Middlejauwho is searching for a business site
for his company, Mr. Appliance, said that the hooseghe subject property is acceptable but needs
roofing, siding, and entryway work. The house, \Whall be a dispatch office, will continue to
have a residential appearance; a 28x30 “resideyaralge” will be added at the back; and trees will
be removed or trimmed to clean up the property. dffan-link fence will be left, he also said, and
no more than eight parking spots will be addedha will never be many people onsite.

In response to Mr. Doriot's query, Mr. Milleaid that Mr. Appliance is a company
servicing residential appliances. Company trucksclvare out all day, will not be present on the
subject property. Mr. Campanello asked whetheriapges will be brought by truck to the site and
asked what kinds of trucks are used. Mr. Appligmedorms service in homes, but UPS and FedEx
will deliver parts to the site, and employees widlk up stock from the site, said Mr. Miller. Heeth
said, however, that employees, whom the companyléage directly from their house,” will not
necessarily have to visit the subject site in tleemmg and that “the inventory is basically on thei
trucks.” The company vehicles are vans, he alsoifgge

Mr. Campanello further queried about onsite retail onsite repair and sale of old
appliances. Mr. Miller answered that while peopteasionally want to bring in old appliances, the
company prefers that they not do that. The complaeyg not sell used or new appliances, he said; it
is strictly a service company. Mr. Campanello @asked how many vehicles the company presently
has, and Mr. Miller answered that the company bas ¥ans and four technicians, who take their
vans home. Mr. Campanello asked whether the taemsiovill arrive at the site and pick up parts
and paperwork. Mr. Miller said that the techniciavi pick up parts but that they are dispatched
without paper via iPad.

Mr. Campanello further asked whether Mr. Millesh@ught the subject property, and Mr.
Miller said that the sale has been made on theittmmaf B-1 approval.

Mr. Doriot asked Mr. Miller what kind of signage was considering. Mr. Miller answered
that he would maximize sighage based on local &gnpany recommendations and cost. The sign
company will handle permitting. Mr. Doriot then askthe staff what the property’s sign area limit
is, and Ms. Gunden said it depends on frontagerdBa@mbers then pointed out that the property
has frontage on three roads.

Mr. Miller then added that though he considerel failding construction for the garage,
he will instead commit more money and build thddig as a residential garage with siding. The
building will not be a pole building, he statedchese of the location.

Roger Miller asked Tom Miller what kind of facylihe has now. Tom Miller said that his
current dispatch office is a 20x25 block structdilee structure is strictly an office, he said, and
pole barn on the current office site is used asaselouse. Mr. Appliance, which has been in
Elkhart County for nine years, does not preserdleha place to “pull a van in right now,” he said,
adding that he is excited about the project butithsup to the community and developers.

Mr. Stump asked whether the subject site has adoasty water. Mr. Miller's answer was
that the site, which is on well and septic, hasaocess to “city.” There is no record of the septic
system, and hooking up to public utilities woulddificult, he said. He offered also that he would



PAGE 4 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 8-13-15

connect to public utilities if the opportunity camap, but he will make the current septic system
work in the meantime.

Mr. Warner asked about anticipated site traffine@QPS delivery and one FedEx delivery
are anticipated per day, answered Mr. Miller, dwde people will work at the site during the day—
two dispatch and customer service employees andMdier himself. Technicians, he further
explained, sometimes will come in for parts, buttpare sometimes taken to technicians at
worksites. Mr. Miller said he does not like to hagehnicians come to the office site if they do not
need to, and summarized by saying that traffic paliminimal. He concluded by apologizing for his
late arrival.

Ms. Lorentz came forward again, in response to Mitler's remarks, and said that the
neighborhood does not support construction of geldwilding for storage of appliances or parts,
the traffic of four or five vans used for pickupdadelivery, and construction of eight parking
places. Her position of objection was strengthebgdMr. Miller's presentation, she clarified,
mentioning also that no one in the area has atocesy water.

A motion was made and secondédiwards/Miller)that the public hearing be closed and
the motion was carried with a unanimous vote.

Mr. Campanello noted that the additional traffidaur vans on Suburban Dr. and CR 17
would not present a nuisance to a subdivision gr@pmately 50 homes housing parents and
children who are all car owners. Board members titeserved that while the company has only
four vans, eight parking spots are planned fosthgect property. Mr. Burbrink observed that a B-1
zone, which will outlast any one property ownemn sae many more uses than just office use, and
stated he was not sure that a B-1 zone fits theectutrea. He had no problem, however, with the
arrival of the petitioner’s exact business.

Mr. Doriot asked what the area of the subject @rypis, and Ms. Gunden answered 0.53
acres. Mr. Doriot asked whether the figure accofont€R 17 right-of-way take, but no answer was
given. He then noted the property dimensions writte the submitted site plan.

Ms. Snyder commented that the intersection of CRrid SR 120 is extremely dangerous,
noted the proximity of Suburban Dr. to the intetimecs traffic signal, and warned that the
appearance of another business near the intersectitd cause a lot of problems.

Mr. Doriot asked what uses can appear in the BriezMr. Auvil said that the B-1 zone
allows residential uses and light commercial aistiviMr. Doriot then expressed support for the
petitioner’s business but did not think the subget was the right place for it. He said the psapo
is not that intrusive but seconded above commedsroing the openness of the B-1 zone. He also
said that were he the business owner, he would/aiot to deal with CR 17 traffic every day.

Mr. Campanello asked Mr. Kolbus whether a commitimieniting the property’s use to
only that of the business in question could beeldviMr. Kolbus’s response was that the Board
would have to table and write up a number of commmaitts.

Mr. Doriot then wanted to know whether the petigowill build another building; whether
the petitioner will add parking area; whether thewe-given lot area accounts for CR 17 right-of-
way take; whether there is enough area onsite feec@ndary septic system; whether there is
enough area onsite for both a new septic systemaaselcondary system, in case the existing
primary system cannot be used; and whether thewi#lbbserve a 50 ft. separation from septic
systems.

Mr. Kolbus queried the Board’s willingness to allaommercial breach of the residential



PAGE 5 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 8-13-15

area in question. Ms. Snyder indicated unwillingnésit Mr. Doriot said the area had already been
breached, by Pheasant Ridge Development, whicbffies area north of the subject property.

Mr. Stump said that questions relating to septistesns would be answered by the
availability of city water, but said also that hil shot know why city water was available to
Suburban Acres but not the subject property. Mrid¥s response was that “they don’'t have city
water,” and Mr. Stump said that the availabilitycdf water is unknown.

The residential area is being intruded into alyeayreed Mr. Miller, who noted that
maintenance of the subject property similar toghgtioner's maintenance of his current facility
would constitute a major improvement of the sulgpeoperty.

Mr. Auvil then read the B-1 district’s purposetetaent from the zoning ordinance.

Mr. Doriot noted the Suburban Acres zone, R-2. Blump recalled a recent rezoning
petition for property at the southeast corner ofZORand Page St. The petitioners wanted to place a
laundromat onsite. Mr. Campanello remembered teatdasibility of septic system installation was
a challenge to the project, and Mr. Stump commethigikhat challenge notwithstanding, the Board
was ready to approve. He mentioned also that véuiledromats require huge septic systems, the
use now in question will not require such a system.

Mr. Campanello said that he could not approve dasethe site plan submitted. He said
that the petitioner should determine the availghdf city water and sewer and submit a better site
plan showing the location of the house and whegestbrage building and any new septic system
will be placed.

Board members asked Mr. Auvil for examples of BAl R-2 uses, and Mr. Auvil read
several from the zoning ordinance.

Mr. Warner cited the site’s CR 17 location asdhby factor preventing his endorsement of
the rezoning. No CR 17 curb cut is requested, heweaid Mr. Stump. Mr. Miller did not consider
traffic an issue, but he and Mr. Doriot did expresscern over lack of information.

At the time of Mr. Campanello’s motion to tableeds below) Mr. Kolbus sought
confirmation that the purposes of tabling wereravle the petitioner time to answer the Board’s
guestions enumerated above and to provide thetsteffto work up commitments to be levied in
the event of Board approval. The Board confirmed.

The Board examined said request and after duedewason and deliberation:

Motion: Action: Table,Moved by Tony CampanelldSeconded by Tom Stump, that the Advisory
Plan Commission table this request for a zone namge from R-1 to B-1 fo€andi L. Chupp
(seller) and Thomas E. Miller (buyemntil the September 10, 2015, meeting of the ElkGaunty
Advisory Plan Commission.

Vote: Motion passedsimmary: Yes = 8, No = 1, Abstain = 0).

Yes. Blake Doriot, Frank Lucchese, Lori Snyder, Rogetlévli Steve Warner, Steven Edwards,
Tom Stump, Tony Campanello.

No: Jeff Burbrink.



PAGE 6 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 8-13-15

6. Major/Minor Change to a DPUD for a Commercial Use dvelopment Located in
Fireside Center Second Subdivision in Concord Towips Zoned DPUD R-4

Mr. Auvil at this time summarized the content shamo addressed to the Plan Commission
dated July 24, 2015, and included in the memberskets. Tim Miller requests that the owners of
new Fireside Center buildings be permitted to piaak signs, not just monument signs, Mr. Auvil
said. Mr. Doriot asked whether the standards gawvgrmaximum sign area would continue to
apply, and Mr. Auvil said they would. Mr. Kolbus ni®ned that the development’s own covenants
will be amended also, and Mr. Auvil agreed.

The Board examined said request and after duedewason and deliberation:

Motion: Action: Approve,Moved by Blake Doriot,Seconded by Tom Stump, that the above-
described change to the Fireside Center Second DB&JDonsidered a minor change and be
approved by the Advisory Plan Commission. The nmotvas carried with a unanimous vote.

7. Zoning Ordinance—Funneling

Mr. Auvil at this time distributed to the Boarddacumentfattached to minutes as Staff Exhibit #1]
containing a proposed zoning ordinance amendmegulating waterfront and backlot development.
The proposed amendment is modeled after LaGrangatZe waterfront development regulation,
and the funneling committee felt that the LaGra@Ggenty regulation fit Elkhart County well, said
Mr. Auvil. The amendment ensures that a single élihot serving a backlot development has an
appropriate amount of water frontage, he summaridedhen read water frontage minimums from
the end of paragraph A of the proposed amendmdmt. dmendment neither prohibits nor
encourages funneling, Mr. Godlewski then said, ibdtunneling will happen, the amendment
provides the way it should happen.

Mr. Stump asked whether the amendment would appbpndominium development, and
Mr. Auvil said it would. Mr. Stump then asked wheththe amendment guidelines are more
restrictive than the guidelines governing condoettgsment on Lake Wawasee. Mr. Godlewski's
response was that LaGrange County’s and Kosciuskmi§'s zoning ordinances were considered
and that Kosciusko County water frontage provisisless restrictive than those of the proposed
Elkhart County amendment. The amendment requires mater frontage than Kosciusko County
provisions do. Mr. Auvil further explained thattlamendment, based on dwelling unit number,
would have the effect of limiting multifamily ursize.

Mr. Doriot said that the amendment appears tavailcsingle residential unit on a lot with
50 ft. of water frontage but prevent the singlédestial unit on a backlot that funnels to thevidth
50 ft. of water frontage. He asked whether the @mamt infringes on the right of the owner of the
single backlot residential unit to enjoy both tise of the vacant funnel lot and the offlake qufet o
backlot home location. He also asked whether, utideamendment, an owner of a waterfront lot
could sell to IDNR so that a ramp can be instalt) asserted that the amendment provisions
“keep a state lake private.” Mr. Godlewski's resporwas that the provisions do not prohibit
backlot development but do prohibit high-densitckiat development. Mr. Doriot then asked
whether, under the amendment, residents of a Hag&lelopment may use a waterfront lot that
does not meet water frontage standards simplyyasdafor nonaquatic recreation. He also asked
whether swimming would be a permitted form of ratien at the lot not meeting water frontage



PAGE 7 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 8-13-15

standards. Mr. Auvil and Mr. Godlewski both answieyes without saying which of Mr. Doriot’s
guestions they were answering. Mr. Stump and Mrridbdhen agreed that the amendment
prohibits recreation on the lot in question, withepecifying the kind of recreation, because of its
failure to meet water frontage standards. “Thesould go to the minimum lot size. | think 50 is
probably a common one, then,” said Mr. Godlewskné lake’s 35,” added Mr. Lucchese.

Mr. Doriot and Mr. Miller agreed that the overgal of the amendment was to prevent a
development of hundreds of residents from funneting single 50 ft. waterfront lot, but Mr. Doriot
then said that under some ordinance provisiongistary homes that observe only minimum side
setbacks may be built on the very kinds of lot$ tha proposed amendment prevents from seeing
use as funnel lots.

In response to Mr. Doriot’'s concerns, Mr. Kolbugigested that the figures at the end of
paragraph A of the amendment be reduced to 30ar&525. Mr. Doriot indicated willingness to
approve a reduction and disapproval of the amentisnérst figure, 100. John K. Letherman
indicated approval of the current amendment figulesng a committee meeting, Ms. Snyder
mentioned. Mr. Doriot then decried state resideimability to access state lakes and said that
amendment opponents he has talked with accuse ameh@roponents of seeking county sanction
of private-only lake access.

The first figure in Kosciusko County's counterptotthe portion of the Elkhart County
amendment containing water frontage figures issally Dennis Pedler, president, Indiana Lake
Association, who added that he would have no probigth a figure of 35. He said that waterfront
lots typically only have 25-35 ft. of water frontagecause of their pie-slice shape, and asked Mr.
Godlewski how long the LaGrange County funnelingvgsions after which the proposed
amendment is modeled have been in the LaGrangetfottinance and whether the provisions
have caused any problems. Mr. Godlewski said tieatdferenced provisions have been in place 10
years and that they are not perfect. Owners ofntdogs cannot be kept from using them as they
choose. The provisions, he said, communicate fgatdensity on backlots is discouraged but that
an option that allows it is offered.

Mr. Pedler then said that if IDNR wanted to buddramp to Indiana Lake, which he
described as a private lake, the IDNR-acquireteltiuring the ramp would have to be large enough
to accommodate the ramp and parking area and wwaud to have more than 50 ft. of water
frontage. He concluded affirming Mr. Doriot’s fraige concerns.

Mr. Kolbus then suggested paragraph A water fgefagures of 35, 25, and 20, and Mr.
Doriot countersuggested 35, 35, and 35. An amentlthah creates many legal nhonconformities
should not be passed, Mr. Godlewski added. Kosei@bunty's figures are 50, 25, and 15, Mr.
Pedler said, and Mr. Doriot said, “We need to labkhe lots that are there, even the existing’lots.
Any funneling amendment must provide a way for owred waterfront lots to rebuild after loss of
homes to fire or dilapidation, Mr. Doriot and Meder then agreed.

Kosciusko County water frontage provisions havenbe place four or five years, said Mr.
Pedler, who was able to cite only one occasion whenprovisions blocked an investor from
building.

Mr. Miller added his support for restrictions tlatdress big buildings and protection for
owners of existing lots experiencing home loss.

Mr. Kolbus suggested that the staff do more retean public lakes, and Mr. Doriot
affrmed the suggestion. In clarification of thatss of Indiana Lake, Mr. Doriot said that it is



PAGE 8 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 8-13-15

owned by the state, Mr. Pedler said that it isstigsl as a public lake, and several Board members
agreed that it has no public access. Mr. Godleasked whether the amendment should appear
before the Plan Commission during the Septembes pdblic hearing, and Mr. Doriot’s response
was that lakes like Hunter Lake and Simonton Ldi@ukl be looked at first. Mr. Godlewski said
that consideration of Simonton Lake lots, whichetaip a point, could not contribute to discussion
about water frontage minimums. The amendment shamddess the status of existing lots, said Mr.
Doriot. Mr. Kolbus suggested that the amendmenvigdeothat lots that predate it be considered
legal nonconforming, and said that he would worthvthe staff on the amendment language. Mr.
Pedler mentioned that Kosciusko County’'s ordinacmatains such a provision, and Ms. Snyder
indicated that the Elkhart County funneling comeataffirmed inclusion of such a provision.

Mr. Campanello mentioned that waterfront propsréiee now connecting to city sewer and
asked whether cities are aware of the potentiahfaltifamily waterfront development. He also
asked why the ordinance could not be amended tplgiban the multifamily development at
guestion. Mr. Godlewski answered that sewer cormretare designed for what is there, and the
Board agreed. Sewer access, which obviates saptallation, allows larger building footprint, Mr.
Godlewski also said.

The impact of development of a hundred-unit commld.ake Wawasee, a huge lake, would
be less severe than the impact of such developarehtdiana Lake, observed Mr. Stump. Such
development on a small lake is unsustainable arsdttvébe limited, he said. Mr. Godlewski
mentioned that Elkhart County and LaGrange Courdyerfront development is predominantly
single family and that Kosciusko County and SteuBemnty waterfront development features
many condominiums.

Mr. Campanello expressed interest in viewing waltemtage provisions affecting
development on Michigan’s Diamond Lake and indidatenfidence that those provisions ban
multifamily development. Ordinance research, whiets somewhat extensive, said Mr. Godlewski,
brought together four ordinances—two Indiana omles and two Michigan ones.

An artist’s rendering or aerial photos showingiiats and waterfront lots would be helpful,
noted Mr. Burbrink.

8. A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Miller and seconded by Mr. Burbrink.
With a unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourn&db&ta.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Daniel Dean, Recording Secretary

Steve Warner, Chairman



